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REPLY TO 
A n F N T r n  OF 

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 
UNITED STATES SOUTHERN COMMAND 

3511 NW 91ST AVENUE 
MIAMI, FL 331721217 

30June2005 

To: The Honorable Henry A. Waxman 
U. S. House of Representatives 
Washington D.C. 205 15-6143 

Thru: The Honorable Joseph E. Schmitz 
Inspector Geneml 
U.S. Department of Defense 
Washington, D.C. 20301 

Dear Representative Waxman, 

This is in response to your June 1,2005 request that the Department of Defense 
investigate allegations that U.S. interrogators at Guantanamo Bay made anti-Semitic 
remarks to detainees in order to interfere with the relationship between these detainees 
and their attorney. Your letter refers to a declaration by Mr. Thomas Wilner, counsel for 
several detainees. Mr. Wilner submitted his declaration as part of a motion during 
ongoing habeas corpus litigatio~ in the federal courts. 

The Department of Defense works closely with the Department of Justice in 
responding to motions by counsel for the detainees. In this case, Mr. Esteban Rodriguez, 
Director, Joint Intelligence Group, Joint Task Force, Guantanamo Cuba prepared a 
declaration (Encl) that responds directly to Mr. Wilner's allegations. The Department of 
Justice used Mr. Rodriguez's declaration to formally reply to Mr. Wilner's motion. 
Mr. Rodriguez's declaration confirms that the Department of Defense does not allow 
interrogators to interfere with the relationship between detainees and their lawyers. As 
noted by Mr. Rodriquez's declaration, the allegations that the interrogators made anti- ' 'Semitic comments or told the detainees not to trust their lawyers are false. The court has 
yet to rule on the matter. I hope,you find this information useful. 

Sincerely, 

Brigadier General, U.S. Marine Corps 
Chief of Staff, U.S. Southern Command 
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DECLARATION OF ESTEBAN RODRIGUEZ 



Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 3 1746, I, Esteban Rodrigu~z, hereby declare: 

1. I am a civilian employee ofthe United States Depament of Defense 

(DoD). I currc~itly serve as Director of the Joint l~itelligence Group ("JIG") of the Joint 

Task Force- Guantanamo Bay Naval Base ("STF-GTMO"). The JIG'S mission is io 

collect intelligence information from detained enemy combatants in the Global War on 

Terror who are deemed to be of strategic intelLigence value. I have senfed as Director of 

the JIG since 17 July 2003. In this capacity, I am responsible for managing and 

overseeing interrogation operations at the detention facility. I joined the United States as 

an interrogator in 1979, and have been in the human intelligence (E3UMINT) business 

ever since. 1 have overseen interrogation and debriefing activities for DoD in the 

continental United States, Europe and now Guantamo, I have personal knowledge of 

the matters stated herein. 

2. The Department of D,efense does not pennit interrogators or other personnel to 

interfere with the relatiomhip between any detainee and his lawyer. This would include a 

prohibition on impersonating a lawyer, on making disparaging comments about the 

lawyer, and on retaliating against a detainee for having met with a lawyer or being 

involved in habeas corpus litigation. 

1 \ 3. 1 have reviewed the Declaration of Thomas Wker ,  submined as part of this 

litigation. Ris declaration eoniends that a female interrogator named Megan has Eotd 

Faziz A1 Kandari not to trust his lawyers because rhey are Jewish and tha* she ~ o r m e d  

hlr. N Kandari she tw angry at him for talking to his lawyers and that fie wouid be 

tortured if he went back to Kuwait. I have spoken with the female iilterrogaror in 

qucstion and she his reviewed these allegations in hk. Wilner's declararion. She has 



infom~ed me that these allegations are false and that she never made disparaging 

cornme~lrs about the la\vyers during conversations with Mr. A1 Kandari, nor has she ever 

done anything to interfere in the relationship between Mr. Al Kandari and his lawyer. 

This interngalor has been assipled to Mr. Saad Ai-Ami since well before his lawyers 

began visiting Guantanarno Bay late in 2004, She has likewise informed me that she 

never made disparaging comments about the lav;~.ers during conversations with Mr. Al- 

Azmi, nor has she ever done anything lo interfere in the reiationship between Mr. Al- 

Azmi and his lawyers. 

4. Mr. Witner's declaration also states &at an unidentified mde interrogator told 

Fouad Mahmoud Al Rabiah on numerous occasions that he should not tntst his lawyers 

because they are Jewish and lhat if he agreed to lct the lawyers represent him, he will be 

held at Guantilnarno forever. I have spoken ~ 4 t b  the interrogador who has been assigned 

to Mr. Al Rabiah since well before his lawyers began visiting Guantanamo Bay late in 

2004. and he has reviewed these allegations in Mr. Wilner's declnration. He has 

informed me that these allegations are false and that he never made disparaging 

cominents about the lawyers with Mr. Ai Rabiah, nor has he ever done anphing to 

interfere in the relationship between a detainee and his lawyer. 

5. Other than the interrogators mentioned above, no other individuals have 

interrogated hfr- A l - h i  or h4r. AI Rabiah since well before their lawyers began visiting 

Guantanamo Bay late in 2004, 

6 .  The interrogators refened to above are active duty militaiy or are contractors 

and. rus such. are subject to the Uniform Code of Military Justice ("UCMS"). 

Interrogators who are contract~rs are bound to the LrCMJ as a condition of their contract. 



The UCW prohibits the making of false official statements: 10 U.S.C. section 907. 

Were the interrogators to have falsified their responses to my inquiries described above. 

they would potentially be subject to discipline and other punitive measures under the 

UCMJ or otherwise. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Dated: May 5,2005 
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